
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

URBANA DIVISION 

 

TASHIMA LITTLE   ) 

      )  

 Plaintiff,    ) 

      ) 2:15-cv-022041 

v.      ) 

      ) 

TMI HOSPITALITY INC.   ) 

MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL INC. ) 

and JOHN DOE #1    ) 

      ) 

 Defendants.    ) 

 

AMENDED COMPLAINT 

 Plaintiff, Tashima Little (“Plaintiff”), by her attorneys, bring this Complaint 

against Defendants TMI Hospitality Incorporated (“TMI”), Marriott International 

Incorporated (“Marriott”) and JOHN DOE #1 (sometimes collectively “Defendants”), 

seeking actual and punitive monetary damages and other relief as follows: 

Nature of the Case 

 John Doe#1 is a managerial employee of Defendant TMI, which owns and 

operates a hotel known as the “Fairfield Inn by Marriott” in Bourbonnais, Illinois.  

On information and belief, TMI operates this hotel under a franchise agreement 

that it entered into with Defendant Marriott, which owns the “Fairfield Inn” brand.  

 John Doe#1 is an aggressive sexual predator who has personally engaged in 

an extreme pattern and practice of sexual harassment against multiple victims.  

Each of his victims is a woman of color, either African-American or Hispanic.  These 

women are employed by TMI as housekeepers; and they were economically 

                                                           
1 This Complaint is being refiled at this time as it was inadvertently filed without a signature. Present copy is complete and accurate. 
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vulnerable to sexual harassment because they need(ed) their jobs.  On hundreds of 

occasions over the last several years, John Doe#1 demanded sexual favors from 

Plaintiff and other similarly situated employees of TMI, and he threatened them 

with termination of their employment to coerce their respective compliance. 

John Doe#1 routinely stalked Plaintiff as she made her housekeeping rounds 

in the hotel, and engaged in unwelcome touching as his first step towards coercing 

Plaintiff into sexual submission.  He routinely demanded that Plaintiff and other 

similarly situated women of color meet him in one or more designated hotel rooms 

at the Fairfield Inn by Marriott in Bourbonnais, where he would the lock the door 

and thus confine them; and where the unwelcome sexual acts would be performed 

under coercive conditions.  

The identity of John Doe#1 is known to Plaintiff.  His name is withheld from 

this complaint due to the extremely scandalous nature of the conduct he has 

engaged in, as the mere filing of a public complaint could be expected to ruin his 

reputation.   

The conduct of John Doe#1, as a managerial employee of TMI gives rise to 

multiple federal and state law claims as alleged below. 

Parties 

1. Tashima Little is an Illinois resident who resides at 12804 S. Loomis 

Street, Calumet Park, Illinois 60827.  Little is an African-American woman.  She is 

a single mother of three young children, one with learning disabilities and another 

with severe asthma.  
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2. Defendant John Doe#1 is a Caucasian male individual who resides, on 

information and belief, in or about Bourbonnais, Illinois.  At all relevant times to 

this Complaint, John Doe#1 has been the Assistant Manager of Fairfield Inn by 

Marriott, located 1550 State Route 50, Bourbonnais, Illinois 60914.  John Doe#1 is 

sued in his individual capacity based on his own actions as alleged herein. 

3. Defendant TMI is a company that builds, owns, and operates hotels, 

with its principle place of business of 4850 32nd Avenue South, Fargo, North Dakota 

58104: 

a. Among its other hotel properties, TMI owns and operates the Fairfield 

Inn by Marriott, located at 1550 State Route 50, Bourbonnais, Illinois 

60914, within the Central District of Illinois.  

b. At all relevant times to this case, TMI has employed John Doe#1 in a 

managerial capacity, such that, with respect to each claim alleged 

herein, TMI is liable to the Plaintiffs under the doctrine of respondeat 

superior with the exception of the claims for “wrongful termination” 

and “negligent supervision” that are alleged in Counts seven and eight, 

in which direct liability is alleged. 

4. Defendant Marriott is a global lodging company with its principle place 

of business at 10400 Fernwood Road, Bethesda, Maryland 20817: 

a. As an essential part of its business, Marriott franchises individuals or 

companies such as TMI to operate hotels under one or more brands 
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that it owns, including but not limited to the “Fairfield Inn by 

Marriott” brand.   

b. Marriott is alleged to be a joint employer of John Doe#1 (along with 

TMI) and therefore is liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

on all counts alleged herein, with the exception of the claims for 

“wrongful termination” and “negligent supervision” that are alleged in 

Counts seven and eight, in which direct liability is alleged. 

c. Specifically, but without limitation, and on information and belief, TMI 

operates the subject “Fairfield Inn By Marriot” in Bourbonnais under a 

franchise or other licensing agreement that it has entered into with 

Marriot, whereby, on further information and belief, Marriot exercises 

direct, indirect or potential control over essential working conditions at 

this hotel, thus creating joint employer status under the opinion of the 

National Labor Relations Board in Browning-Ferris Industries, 362 

NLRB No. 186 (August 27, 2015). 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

5. This Court has original jurisdiction over this civil action pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. § 1331 because the first and second causes of action arise under federal 

law, 42 U.S.C. § 1981, and supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 

because causes of actions three through eight are related to causes one and two 

such that they form part of the same case or controversy.  

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because: 
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a. Defendant John Doe#1, by information and belief, is an Illinois 

resident. 

b. Defendant TMI Hospitality is “doing business” in Illinois as it owns or 

operates hotels in thirteen Illinois cities, including the Fairfield Inn by 

Marriott located at 1550 State Route 50, Bourbonnais, Illinois 60914. 

c. Defendant Marriott is “doing business” in Illinois as it owns, operates, 

or is affiliated with more than 95 hotels in Illinois, including the 

Fairfield Inn by Marriott located at 1550 State Route 50, Bourbonnais, 

Illinois 60914.  

7. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) in the Central District of 

Illinois, as all acts and omissions giving rise to these claims occurred in the Central 

District of Illinois.  

FACTS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS 

A. Employment of Plaintiff 

8. On or about May 26, 2013, TMI hired Plaintiff as a housekeeper at the 

Fairfield Inn by Marriott in Bourbonnais, Illinois.  In late-Spring 2014, TMI 

promoted Plaintiff to PM Front Desk Clerk, although she also continued to hold her 

position as a housekeeper.  On or about July 10, 2015, TMI terminated Plaintiff’s 

employment.  

B. Defendant John Doe#1’s Sexual Harassment of Plaintiff 

9. At all times while Plaintiff was employed by TMI, John Doe#1 was 

employed by TMI as the Assistant Manager at the Fairfield Inn by Marriott in 
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Bourbonnais, Illinois.  In that capacity and at all times in this case, John Doe#1 had 

supervisory authority over Plaintiff.  

10. Within weeks of starting her employment with Fairfield Inn by 

Marriott, Plaintiff began experiencing unwanted and repeated attention and 

physical interaction from John Doe#1.   John Doe#1’s actions began as flirting, 

comments on her appearance and physical attractiveness, and unwanted brushing 

up against Plaintiff while she was bent over cleaning. 

11. In late-Summer 2013, John Doe#1’s conduct escalated to demanding 

that Plaintiff engage in sexual intercourse and other acts of a sexual nature with 

him. During these interactions, John Doe#1 repeatedly threatened Plaintiff with 

the loss of her job if she did not comply with his demands.  

12. In addition, John Doe#1 is a large and physically powerful man, to the 

point that he inspired physical fear in Plaintiff.    

13. These unwelcome sexual interactions occurred during Plaintiff’s work 

shifts, as John Doe#1 would often require Plaintiff to leave her post as PM Front 

Desk Clerk and accompany him into one or more designated hotel rooms to engage 

in the sexual conduct described above. 

14. During the approximate two years that Plaintiff worked at Fairfield 

Inn by Marriott, John Doe#1 repeatedly subjected Plaintiff to this treatment, often 

more than once per week.  The occasions on which Little was coerced by John Doe#1 

to engage in unwelcome sexual acts exceeds 100 and possibly exceeds 200.     
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15. Plaintiff submitted to these unwelcome sexual acts demanded by John 

Doe#1 because she is the mother of three minor children, including one child with 

learning disabilities and another child with asthma.  She was simply in no financial 

position to risk losing her job by defying John Doe#1.  She perceived that she had no 

choice but to submit to involuntary sexual servitude for the purpose of keeping her 

job and feeding her children.  

C. Defendants’ Termination of Plaintiff’s Employment 

16.  In or about April 2015, Plaintiff stood up against John Doe#1’s 

continued sexual demands and refused to perform further.  

17. Prior to the time that she refused the unwelcome sexual demands, 

Plaintiff had routinely received positive reviews.  She had twice been promoted 

within the company.  

18. In July 2015, TMI terminated Plaintiff.  The stated grounds for her 

termination were false and pre-textual. 

19. On information and belief, John Doe#1 played a causal role in the 

decision of TMI to terminate the Plaintiff’s employment. 

D. Injuries and Damages 

20. As the direct and proximate result of the conduct of Defendants alleged 

herein, Plaintiff has suffered extreme emotional distress and psychological injuries, 

and economic loss due to the loss of wages and other benefits of employment.  In 

addition, without limitation: 
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a. Being subjected to involuntary sexual servitude was extremely 

devastating to Plaintiff and caused her to suffer serious depression.  

Yet, because she wanted to be strong for her children, she suffered 

largely in silence. 

b. Due to her loss of employment, Plaintiff Little was unable to continue 

making payments on her car, and was forced to abandon the majority 

of her belongings and the house her and her three children had made 

their home.  In doing so, Plaintiff was unable to avoid being separated 

from her children, who currently reside with her father while she stays 

at multiple friends’ houses located closer to her new place of 

employment.  This twenty mile distance means that Plaintiff is not 

always able to see her children.  

c. In total, the stress of Plaintiff’s years of submission to involuntary 

sexual servitude, and her resulting losses and separation from her 

children, has left her emotionally, mentally, and physically distressed.  

She has lost weight, suffers from very severe depression, feels 

degraded as a woman and a human being, and has been experiencing 

nightmares. 

COUNT I 

DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1981 

 

21. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as though fully 

stated herein, the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 20 above.  
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22. Plaintiff is an African-American woman.  As such, she is protected by 

42 U.S.C. § 1981 (“Section 1981”), which prohibits discrimination, including 

harassment, against an employee by her employer because of the employee’s race.  

23. Defendant John Doe#1 repeatedly violated Section 1981 through his 

multiple acts of sexual harassment based on race. 

24. Plaintiff was subjected to repeated and unwanted demands for sexual 

intercourse and other sexual acts by her boss, John Doe#1. 

25. This conduct was not welcomed by Plaintiff. 

26. John Doe#1’s conduct was motivated by the fact that Plaintiff is 

African American.  

27. John Doe#1’s conduct was so severe or pervasive that a reasonable 

person in Plaintiff’s position would find her work environment to be hostile or 

abusive. 

28. Plaintiff reasonably believed her work environment to be hostile or 

abusive as a result of John Doe#1’s repeated threats that she would lose her job if 

she did not submit to his demands. 

29. Plaintiff suffered an adverse tangible employment action in that she 

was terminated for refusing to continue to submit to John Doe#1’s threats and 

demands.  

30. TMI and Marriot are liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

for the racially discriminatory actions of their agent, John Doe#1.  
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31. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts 

that will be proven at trial as a result of John Doe#1’s continued harassment of her.  

32. The conduct of John Doe#1 was extreme, such that punitive damages 

are warranted in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants and deter others 

from like misconduct.  

33. Plaintiff is entitled to the recovery of attorneys’ fees and costs under 42 

U.S.C. §§ 1981 and 1988. 

COUNT II 

RETALIATION IN VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1981 

 

34. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as though fully 

stated herein, the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 20 above. 

35. Defendant John Doe#1 also violated Section 1981 through his acts of 

retaliation against Plaintiff. 

36. Plaintiff engaged in protected activity in objecting to, and putting a 

stop to, John Doe#1’s continued harassment of Plaintiff. 

37. Plaintiff was subjected to a materially adverse action in that TMI 

terminated her employment shortly after she refused to continue to submit to John 

Doe#1’s demands. 

38. There is a causal connection between Plaintiff objecting to John 

Doe#1’s continued harassment and her termination.  

39. TMI and Marriott are liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

for the retaliatory actions of their agent, John Doe#1.  
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40. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts 

that will be proven at trial as the result of Defendants’ retaliatory actions against 

her.  

41. The conduct of John Doe#1 was extreme, such that punitive damages 

are warranted in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants and deter others 

from like misconduct. 

42. Plaintiff is also entitled to the recovery of attorneys’ fees and costs 

under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1981 and 1988. 

COUNT III 

BATTERY  

 

43. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as though fully 

stated herein, the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 20 above. 

44. Defendant John Doe#1’s conduct constitutes battery because he 

intentionally and repeatedly touched Plaintiff in an unwanted and offensive 

manner. 

45. Plaintiff did not want to engage in sexual relations with John Doe#1.  

John Doe#1 forced Plaintiff to engage in such interactions through the threat of 

termination of her job if she did not submit.  

46. John Doe#1’s contact with Plaintiff was unwanted and offensive to her. 

47. TMI and Marriott are liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

for the battery committed by their agent, John Doe#1, as John Doe#1’s actions were 

committed under the auspice of his position as Plaintiff’s boss. 
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48. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts to 

be proven at trial as a result of John Doe#1’s battery of her.  

49. The conduct of John Doe#1 was extreme, such that punitive damages 

are warranted in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants and deter others 

from like misconduct.  

COUNT IV 

ASSAULT  

 

50. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as though fully 

stated herein, the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 20 above. 

51. Defendant John Doe#1’s conduct constitutes assault because he 

intentionally and repeatedly threatened Plaintiff with unwanted, offensive, sexual 

contact, which placed her in reasonable apprehension of continued and repeated 

offensive contacts. 

52. Plaintiff reasonably believed, bolstered by John Doe#1’s repeated 

threats, that she would be terminated if she did not submit to John Doe#1’s 

demands for sexual favors and intercourse.  

53. Plaintiff further reasonably believed that John Doe#1’s unwanted and 

offensive contact would be repeated while she continued to be employed at Fairfield 

Inn.  

54. TMI and Marriott are liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

for the assault committed by their agent, John Doe#1, as John Doe#1’s actions were 

committed under the auspice of his position as Plaintiff’s boss.  
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55. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts 

that will be proven at trial as a result of John Doe#1’s assault of Plaintiff. 

56. The conduct of John Doe#1 was extreme, such that punitive damages 

are warranted in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants and deter others 

from like misconduct. 

COUNT V 

NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

57. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as though fully 

stated herein, the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 20 above. 

58. Defendant John Doe#1’s conduct constitutes negligent infliction of 

emotional distress against Plaintiff. 

59. John Doe#1 owed Plaintiff a duty to respect her bodily integrity. 

Furthermore, John Doe#1 owed Plaintiff a duty due to the special relationship 

between John Doe#1 and Plaintiff of employer/employee. 

60. John Doe#1 breached that duty when he repeatedly demanded that 

Plaintiff submit to unwanted sexual interactions under the threat of termination 

from employment.  This blatant disregard for the bodily integrity of Plaintiff rises to 

the level of willful and wanton misconduct by John Doe#1. 

61. Plaintiff has suffered severe emotional distress from repeatedly being 

subjected to John Doe#1’s unwanted, offensive, and degrading demands for sexual 

relations, as set out in paragraph 20 above 
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62. John Doe#1’s actions were the proximate and actual causes of 

Plaintiff’s injuries 

63. TMI and Marriott are liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

for the negligent infliction of emotional distress committed by their agent, John 

Doe#1, as John Doe#1’s action were committed under the auspice of his position as 

Plaintiff’s boss.  

64. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts 

that will be proven at trial, as a result of Defendant John Doe#1’s negligent 

infliction of emotional distress. 

65. The conduct of John Doe#1 was extreme, such that punitive damages 

are warranted in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants and deter others 

from like misconduct. 

COUNT VI 

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS  

66. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-allege, as though fully stated 

herein, the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 20 above. 

67. Defendant John Doe#1’s conduct constitutes intentional infliction of 

emotional distress against Plaintiff. 

68. John Doe#1’s conduct of repeatedly demanding Plaintiff engage in 

sexual relations with him in exchange for her continued employment at the 

Fairfield Inn by Marriott was extreme and outrageous conduct. 
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69. John Doe#1 knew, or recklessly or consciously disregarded the 

probability that his repeated extreme and outrageous conduct of demanding 

Plaintiff submit to sexual relations with him would result in extreme emotional 

distress to Plaintiff. 

70. Plaintiff has suffered severe emotional distress from repeatedly being 

subjected to John Doe#1’s unwanted, offensive, and degrading demands for sexual 

relations, as set out in paragraph 20 above. 

71. John Doe#1’s extreme and outrageous conduct was the proximate and 

actual causes of the Plaintiff’s emotional distress.  

72. TMI and Marriott are liable under the doctrine of respondeat superior 

for the intentional infliction of emotional distress against Plaintiff by their agent, 

John Doe#1, as John Doe#1’s actions were committed under the auspice of his 

position as Plaintiff’s boss. 

73. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts to 

be proven at trial, as a result of Defendant John Doe#1’s intentional infliction of 

emotional distress. 

74. The conduct of John Doe#1 was extreme, such that punitive damages 

are warranted in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants and deter others 

from like misconduct. 
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COUNT VII 

WRONGFUL TERMINATION 

 

75. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as though fully 

stated herein, the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 20 above. 

76. Defendants TMI and Marriott wrongfully terminated Plaintiff. 

77. Plaintiff was terminated from her positions with Fairfield Inn by 

Marriott, which is owned and operated by TMI and Marriott as joint-employers. 

78. Plaintiff’s termination was motivated by her refusing to continue to 

comply with John Doe#1’s demands for sexual relations, and in doing so, refusing to 

allow John Doe#1 to continue to sexually harass her.  

79. Plaintiff’s conduct is protected by a clearly mandated public policy 

against sexual and racial harassment in the workplace.  

80. Plaintiff has suffered actual and consequential damages in amounts to 

be proven at trial as a result of Defendant TMI and Marriott’s wrongful termination 

of Plaintiff. 

COUNT VIII 

NEGLIGENT HIRING AND SUPERVISION  

81. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges, as if fully stated 

herein, the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 20 above.  

82. TMI and Marriott’s conduct, individually and as joint employers, 

constitutes negligent hiring and negligent supervision of John Doe#1: 
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a. TMI and Marriott, as employers of Plaintiff, had a duty to carefully 

hire, and to supervise all of their employees, including managerial 

employees such as John Doe#1, in whom they place substantial trust 

and discretion and whom they empower to act in a supervisory role 

over the Plaintiff and other similarly situated employees.    

b. Without limitation, TMI and Marriott, as employers of Plaintiff had a 

duty to protect Plaintiff and all other similarly situated employees 

from the needless danger that could, and did, result from the hiring 

and failure to adequately supervise a managerial employee who was in 

fact a dangerous sexual predator. 

c. In addition, but without limiting the general duty alleged in sub-

paragraphs 81(a) and (b), the duty of corporate defendants TMI and 

Marriott to properly hire and supervise their managerial employees is 

heightened by the nature of their business. 

i. The corporate defendants operate hotels located across the 

country.  They manage their hotels from remote locations.   They 

are fully aware that at their hotels, their managerial employees 

such as John Doe#1 will be in position to act with substantial 

discretion on a day-to-day basis.    

ii. By design, hotels contain many rooms with beds, and with doors 

that lock. 
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iii. At their hotels, the corporate defendants routinely hire women 

to work as housekeepers, a job that routinely and by design 

requires them to enter rooms with beds, in which they are likely 

to be alone. 

iv. As the corporate defendants knew or should have known, the 

women that they tend to hire to be housekeepers at their hotels 

including Plaintiff are not high wage earners; they tend, such as 

Plaintiff, to be relatively uneducated, earn low wages and have 

limited job mobility. 

v. From the prevailing conditions at their hotels, of which the 

corporate defendants were fully aware or should have been 

aware, TMI and Marriott were or should have been aware that 

Plaintiff and other female housekeepers were, and still are, 

particularly vulnerable to predatory sexual harassment.  The 

possibility of unlawful sexual harassment being perpetrated 

against Plaintiff and other female housekeepers was foreseeable 

and the risk of serious harm was too great to ignore. 

83. The corporate defendants’ hiring of John Doe#1 created needless 

danger and was negligent. 

84. The corporate defendants’ failure to competently supervise John Doe#1 

created needless danger and was negligent. 
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85. As the proximate result of the corporate defendants’ negligence in 

hiring and supervision, Plaintiff has suffered injuries caused by continued sexual 

harassment at the hands of John Doe#1, in amounts to be proven at trial.   

86. In addition, the corporate defendants’ failure to supervise John Doe#1 

provided John Doe#1 with the opportunity to retaliate against Plaintiff for standing 

up against him and refusing to allow the sexual harassment to continue. 

87. As the direct and proximate result of the corporate defendants’ failure 

to supervise John Doe#1 thus empowering him with the opportunity to unlawfully 

retaliate, Plaintiff has suffered further injury in the loss of her employment as a 

result of John Doe#1’s retaliation against Plaintiff. 

88. In addition, the corporate defendants’ hiring and supervision of John 

Does#1 rises to the level of willful and wanton misconduct, thus justifying the 

imposition of punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants 

and deter others from like misconduct. 

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 Plaintiff demands trial by jury. 

 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Tashima Little prays for the entry of judgment 

against all Defendants, jointly and severally:  

2:15-cv-02204-CSB-EIL   # 4    Page 19 of 21                                             
      



20 
 

a) Awarding actual and consequential damages to Plaintiff in amounts to be 

proven at trial, and including damages for economic loss, deprivation of 

civil rights, and extreme emotional distress, pain and suffering.  

b) Awarding punitive damages in the maximum amount permitted by law, 

and in an amount sufficient to punish these Defendants for their 

intentional, extreme, outrageous, and willful and wanton misconduct and 

to deter others from like misconduct. 

c) Awarding attorneys’ fees and costs to Plaintiff. 

d) Awarding all other relief that is available under law that  

this Court deems just and appropriate. 

September 18, 2015 

Respectfully submitted, 

TASHIMA LITTLE  

 

/s/ Carmen D. Caruso__________ 

One of Plaintiff’s Attorneys 

 

Carmen D. Caruso (#6189462) cdc@cdcaruso.com 

Kristen Guralczyk (#6314178) kmg@cdcaruso.com 

CARMEN D. CARUSO LAW FIRM 

77 West Washington Street,  

Suite 1900  

Chicago, IL 60602 

(T) (312) 626-1160 

(F) (312) 276-8646 

 

 

Gary Abrams (#0005010) -- gda44@comcast.net 

GARY D. ABRAMS & ASSOCIATES LTD. 
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55 West Monroe Street 

Suite 1200 

Chicago, IL 60603 

(T) (312) 263-4085 

(F) (312) 641-6959 
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